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          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Good morning,

          3  everyone. I would like to call this meeting on the

          4  Subcommittee on Zoning and Franchises to order.

          5  Joining me this morning are Council Members Bob

          6  Jackson, Melinda Katz, Al Vann, Joel Rivera and

          7  Simcha Felder, and I see Helen Sears has just joined

          8  us.

          9                 Very quickly, Land Use No. 332, which

         10  is an application to establish, maintain and operate

         11  an unenclosed sidewalk cafe located at 48 East 12th

         12  Street. It's Land Use No. 20065540 TCM, by a letter

         13  to me dated November 15th, the applicant has

         14  withdrawn the petition. The vote on this item will

         15  be a motion to file the letter of withdrawal.

         16                 Land Use No. 331, 20075075 TCQ,

         17  application to establish, maintain and operate an

         18  unenclosed sidewalk located at 70-09 Austin Street,

         19  which is in Council Member Katz's district, is being

         20  laid over.

         21                 That leaves us with just one item

         22  this morning. Land Use No. 304, C060334 ZSM.

         23  Application by CSCW West LLC for the granting of a

         24  special permit to allow a portion of the railroad

         25  right-of-way, which will be completely covered over
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          2  by a permanent platform to be included in the lot

          3  area property located at 505-513 West 43rd Street,

          4  to facilitate the development of two hotels in an

          5  M1-5, R8/C2-5 and R8 districts within the Special

          6  Clinton District.

          7                 I'll ask the applicant to come up. I

          8  have four sheets, so I only see three people. Is one

          9  not testifying? Oh, here he comes.

         10                 MR. SEGAL: Good morning, Chairperson,

         11  Council members. My name is Jay Segal. I'm a Land

         12  Use attorney with Greenberg Trauig. We represent the

         13  applicant.

         14                 As you said, this is an application

         15  for a special permit from the City Planning

         16  Commission to construct a platform over a railroad

         17  cut in Manhattan, approximately 100 feet west of

         18  Tenth Avenue, to West 43rd and West 44th Streets.

         19                 The cut is in an M1-5 zoning

         20  district. Two buildings that would be constructed on

         21  the platform would be hotels, one of them fronting

         22  on West 43rd Street, and one of them fronting on

         23  West 44th Street.

         24                 Other than the need for the special

         25  permit allowing a platform, the hotels would be as
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          2  of right with respect to all provisions of the

          3  zoning resolution.

          4                 The special permit section, which

          5  would authorize the platform, has four required

          6  findings, which this project satisfies. The first

          7  finding is that the streets are adequate to handle

          8  the traffic. The environmental assessments taken

          9  shows that the streets are adequate.

         10                 The hotels, as you will see in a few

         11  minutes, are moderately sized, will have no banquet

         12  or restaurant facilities that would draw any

         13  traffic.

         14                 The second finding is that the

         15  distribution of floor area on the platform does not

         16  adversely affect the character of the area by unduly

         17  concentrating floor area. The hotels were originally

         18  11 and ten stories, evenly sized, changed to 12 and

         19  nine stories at the request of the community board,

         20  who felt 12 and nine would benefit the character

         21  area, than 11 and ten. So there is no under

         22  concentration of floor area.

         23                 The third finding has to do with uses

         24  below the platform and there are none in this

         25  application, and the fourth finding says that
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          2  whatever we're doing wouldn't preclude railroad use.

          3  And certainly it's not but we have to have an

          4  agreement with Amtrack before we could get any

          5  permit to build anything. So, clearly we satisfied

          6  that finding.

          7                 Although the proposed project clearly

          8  meets the findings, we nevertheless embarked upon a

          9  series of successful meetings with representatives

         10  of elected officials in the community board. Brenda

         11  Levin will discuss them in detail shortly.

         12                 This procedure followed a model that

         13  we established with Speaker Quinn about five years

         14  ago with respect to the rehabilitation to the

         15  Biltmore Theatre (phonetic), where prior to the time

         16  that City Planning certified the application is

         17  complete, we met with her and interested members of

         18  the community to attempt to resolve all issues that

         19  might concern the Council prior to even the

         20  certification of the application, which is what we

         21  attempted to do here.

         22                 An issue was arisen in the last month

         23  regarding union participation in operation and

         24  construction of hotels. My partner Ed Wallace, will

         25  address the owner of the site regarding these
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          2  issues, however, because we have met all of the

          3  required special permit findings, we believe it

          4  would be contrary to the requirements of the City

          5  Charter and the zoning resolution for labor

          6  management issues be a factor in the determination

          7  of this application.

          8                 Gene, do you want to?

          9                 MR. KAUFMAN: I'm Gene Kaufman. I'm

         10  the architect for the project. I have a series of

         11  boards to show you what we're proposing.

         12                 This is the proposed building seen on

         13  43rd Street in the site plan. This shows the

         14  location of our building. As you can see, there is a

         15  railroad cut which runs north of the property, south

         16  underground. We're proposing to fill this in and

         17  help knit back together the streetscape of Manhattan

         18  in this area.

         19                 This is the proposed site plan of the

         20  hotel. You could see there is two buildings, one on

         21  each street, as Jay explained, with some open space

         22  between them and some open space on the streetscape

         23  in front, which will have improvements and will be

         24  open to the public.

         25                 The original design of the building,
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          2  the heights have been varied in response to comments

          3  and concerns of the community board. This is the

          4  view of the one side on 43rd Street, but the

          5  language of the two buildings is the same. We've

          6  completely changed the exterior expression of the

          7  building from the original proposal. There was a lot

          8  of comment that the building should match as closely

          9  as possible the residential character of some other

         10  buildings that are in the neighborhood, although not

         11  immediately adjacent to ours. And, so, what we've

         12  attempted to do here is with the expression of the

         13  brick, some colored elements, some banding in the

         14  building, the proportion of the windows, the

         15  introduction of a cornice and a variety of other

         16  features in the building, as closely as possible to

         17  pick up the language that is indicative of Clinton.

         18                 This is the same thing, showing it in

         19  two dimensions, and you can see the 43rd Street

         20  view. The height of the building, as shown in this

         21  sectional diagram shows not only the railroad below

         22  grade, but it shows the lower height of the building

         23  on 44th Street, 90 feet high, per the discussion

         24  with the community it was dropped and the additional

         25  height added on 43rd Street, 120 feet.
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          2                 And this is the view on the other

          3  side showing identical language for the building on

          4  both streets.

          5                 Thank you very much.

          6                 MS. LEVIN: Good morning, Council

          7  members, members of the staff. My name is Brenda

          8  Levin. I'm a Land Use and Community Outreach

          9  Consultant on this project.

         10                 I'd like to begin by complimenting

         11  the community board, the Borough President's office,

         12  the Speaker's District Office staff and a member of

         13  her Land Use staff. This has been a very productive

         14  process, we feel, and we hope that everyone else

         15  agrees. It was very efficient and effective for us

         16  to do things, rather than doing it seriatim for

         17  everyone to meet together throughout the process,

         18  and to come to agreements where that was possible.

         19                 The Community Board started out

         20  having 12 concerns, they were then consolidated into

         21  eight. They were very diligent in pointing out to us

         22  they wanted facade treatment changes, how large the

         23  signage could be, what kind of lighting, what kind

         24  of light bulbs, tree planting, streetscape, all of

         25  this was very helpful, and we would like to publicly
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          2  acknowledge the project is much better as a result

          3  of this process in working with everyone.

          4                 The one thing that the community

          5  board asks that we did not feel that we should do

          6  was to eliminate the parking.

          7                 The community board agrees that there

          8  should be a curb cut on 43rd Street so that the

          9  delivery trucks will not park on the street and

         10  block traffic, but they did not want any car traffic

         11  for hotel patrons.

         12                 These are medium-sized hotels, fairly

         13  close to what will be the expanded convention

         14  center, there is a need for medium-priced,

         15  medium-sized hotels in New York, to help keep the

         16  tourist and hotel industry viable, and the

         17  convention center business, and we think that it's

         18  logical to have a few parking spaces for people who

         19  actually might need them, people who might be in a

         20  wheelchair or families with small children.

         21                 So, as of right we could have had 70

         22  parking spaces, although from a construction

         23  standpoint that would probably not be possible. We

         24  originally asked for 23 or 24 spaces. We agreed to

         25  only have 12. The community board still was not
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          2  comfortable with that, but the Borough President

          3  report says, given that the applicant is permitted

          4  to have 70 accessory parking spaces as of right,

          5  this is a reasonable concession. So, we think that

          6  the 12 parking spaces make sense.

          7                 Given the fact, as Mr. Segal said,

          8  that we believe we meet the four findings, and we've

          9  worked diligently with the community board, and

         10  everyone in the process we hope that you will

         11  approve this project.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 MR. WALLACE: (Not identified for the

         14  record.) Good morning, Chairman Avella, Chairman

         15  Katz, members of the Council and staff. I always

         16  preface when I come here to say I was once an

         17  honored member of the body, and so it's a pleasure

         18  to come back and be treated so courteously when I

         19  do.

         20                 I don't want to throw a wet blanket

         21  on anything that's been said. I think a lot of work

         22  with the community has been done. Somewhat late in

         23  the process after it had been passed upon by the

         24  Borough President, some questions were raised about

         25  the principle of the client's labor practices, and

                                                            12

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  we have engaged in a vigorous dialogue, undertaken

          3  quickly, to try to address those so that the Council

          4  and the Speaker can feel comfortable that going

          5  forward there will be great sensitivity to issues of

          6  labor and management, both in the building of the

          7  buildings and in the operation of the hotels.

          8                 That dialogue has not concluded. I

          9  don't know that it's particularly relevant or

         10  germane in any legal way to the proceedings here,

         11  but I thought it was useful to report on it. I'm

         12  confident you'll hear something about it from

         13  subsequent speakers. And what I would ask is that to

         14  the extent that there are concerns by members of the

         15  body, and notwithstanding that the hearing itself

         16  may close, that we be given an opportunity to submit

         17  in writing up-to-the-minute assessment of where we

         18  are. I am quite hopeful that by the vote of the full

         19  Council, there will be a successful resolution of

         20  the issues, and I think there has been great

         21  progress made. You may hear differently from someone

         22  else, but I think that's sort of is the glass half

         23  full or is the glass half empty.

         24                 If it comes to pass that the Council

         25  has great concerns, obviously we want to address
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          2  those in writing, writing before the vote. At this

          3  point I think to leave the record with the four

          4  findings and the report on the community is about

          5  the best thing to do, other than to say that we are

          6  certainly committed to not only lawful conduct in

          7  the labor management area, but do a little bit

          8  better than that and to do as well as we can, both

          9  with organized labor and with the people who will

         10  work on the project as it's built and then of course

         11  women and men who will work in the projects when

         12  they are operating hotels.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: For the

         14  Committee's information, obviously this lies within

         15  the Speaker's district, and she has asked that since

         16  these discussions are ongoing, that we have the

         17  public hearing today, but that we lay the vote over

         18  until the date of the Stated Meeting, the 29th,

         19  which we will do.

         20                 That will of course mean a meeting of

         21  the Subcommittee and then a meeting of the Land Use

         22  Committee on the 29th.

         23                 Any questions for the applicant?

         24                 Council Member Jackson.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you,
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          2  Mr. Chair. Good morning. With respects to, you

          3  indicated that the community board had about 11 or a

          4  dozen concerns, and you addressed approximately

          5  three or four of them. What are the eight remaining

          6  concerns that are outstanding?

          7                 MR. SEGAL: Councilman Jackson, the

          8  community board is here today and I'm sure they will

          9  give you a complete rundown. We said some of them

         10  were consolidated, some were modified. We think we

         11  addressed all of the concerns that evolved in the

         12  process, with the exception of the parking, where

         13  they wanted none and you still have 12. The Co-chair

         14  of the Land Use Committee is here today and I think

         15  she's testifying, so you'll be able to address your

         16  comments directly to her.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: So, you're

         18  saying to me that the approximately a dozen concerns

         19  that they have that they addressed were addressed

         20  and there is really one that's outstanding; is that

         21  what you're telling me?

         22                 MR. SEGAL: Yes. There is one we only

         23  partially addressed. They wanted the parking to go

         24  from 23 to zero, it went from 23 to 12. We addressed

         25  all of the other concerns that they had.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: And did the

          3  community board vote on this matter? And if so, what

          4  was the vote?

          5                 MR. SEGAL: The vote was no, unless we

          6  did the conditions that we agreed to do.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay. And

          8  have you gone back to the community board

          9  communicating with them what you have done to

         10  address their issues?

         11                 MR. SEGAL: We told them we would do

         12  those issues, but the way they prefer to vote is to

         13  say no unless we do what we said we were going to

         14  do. At the hearing we told them we would do those

         15  issues.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: And you said

         17  you have addressed all of them and there is only one

         18  that is partially outstanding; is that correct?

         19                 MR. SEGAL: Yes, Councilman Jackson.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Now, with

         21  respect to traffic, that's a heavily congested area,

         22  42nd Street, that whole corridor there. How is this

         23  project going to impact the traffic there, in your

         24  opinion?

         25                 MR. SEGAL: Well, in my opinion, and
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          2  the opinion of our environmental consultant, it will

          3  not impact the amount of traffic, but the amount of

          4  cars that will be drawn during the peak hours of

          5  traffic does not reach the significant level, that a

          6  lot of the people will take mass transit, and that

          7  people will arrive during non-peak hours and they

          8  didn't think it would have any traffic impact.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: And how many

         10  rooms are we referring to here in the project?

         11                 MR. KAUFMAN: There are approximately

         12  350 rooms. There are 150 rooms on the hotel on 44th

         13  Street and 200 approximately rooms on the hotel on

         14  43rd Street.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: And do you

         16  truly believe that the majority of people are going

         17  to be coming by foot? Do you truly believe that?

         18                 MR. KAUFMAN: I think that there will

         19  be people who will come by mass transit. There are

         20  people who will come by taxi as well.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: You know,

         22  because normally when people go to a hotel, if they

         23  have luggage, the majority of the people are not

         24  coming on a subway with luggage, and in fact, you're

         25  saying that this is a moderate or middle-priced
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          2  hotel in order to deal with the convention extension

          3  of the Javits Center and to have close proximity to

          4  that.

          5                 What is the range, in your opinion,

          6  on what you're estimating the cost of the rooms to

          7  be?

          8                 MR. KAUFMAN: The range would be in

          9  the low $200 per night.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: And that's

         11  considered as far as the hotel industry of New York

         12  City moderate, is that correct?

         13                 MR. KAUFMAN: That's correct.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: And based on

         15  that it's my opinion that the majority of people are

         16  not coming by foot and public transportation. That's

         17  not realistic in my point of view. And I say that as

         18  a native New Yorker, as someone who I have not

         19  traveled extensively, but when I have luggage, I am

         20  not taking New York City subway system in order to

         21  get to a hotel in which I'm paying $250 a night for.

         22  I think that that's not realistic. And, so, I do see

         23  a lot of traffic whether or not it's the yellow cabs

         24  that most people take in around midtown or car

         25  service, or especially if they're business people,
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          2  depending on where their business takes them, they

          3  will maybe have a car service or a rental of cars

          4  and what have you?

          5                 What percentage do you anticipate to

          6  be traveling by cars? Because you had initially, it

          7  was expected to have about 70 parking spaces; is

          8  that correct?

          9                 MR. SEGAL: No. You asked two

         10  questions, Councilman Jackson. Let me respond to

         11  them both.

         12                 We said that the zoning resolution

         13  would allow 70 spaces as-of-right, and that we had

         14  proposed 23 and reduced it to 12 at the request of

         15  the community board.

         16                 With respect to your question about

         17  people traveling, we're not saying that everybody is

         18  going to take the subway. The way the City

         19  environmental quality review process is, is we're

         20  supposed to calculate whether or not given the

         21  amount of people who are going to take cabs and

         22  private vehicles, whether the trips in the peak hour

         23  will be 50. If it doesn't reach 50, then the City's

         24  manual says it is not a significant event from the

         25  manual's perspective.
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          2                 So, you look at the amount of rooms,

          3  and you look at how often they turn over, you look

          4  how often people are going to be arriving with

          5  luggage versus traveling back and forth to meetings.

          6  This is walking to the convention center, or taping

          7  of the transport. And in using the numbers that the

          8  manual allows them to use, the amount of trips in a

          9  peak hour, which is what they look at, did not reach

         10  the threshold.

         11                 We certainly agree with you that a

         12  lot of people are going to take cabs, but not enough

         13  people are taking cabs to hit the critical threshold

         14  in a peak hour.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: And the

         16  critical threshold I think you indicated in your

         17  response is 50?

         18                 MR. SEGAL: Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: That's what

         20  the manual says; is that correct.

         21                 MR. SEGAL: Fifty trips in a peak

         22  hour.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: What manual

         24  are you referring to? I'm sorry.

         25                 MR. SEGAL: The City Environmental
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          2  Quality Review Technical Manual that is published in

          3  order to make sure that all of the environmental

          4  assessment statements and environmental impact

          5  statements that are prepared by applicants for

          6  discretionary permit are uniform and follow the same

          7  rules and guidelines.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay, because

          9  I know manual is one thing, but it doesn't

         10  necessarily state what the realities are in the

         11  street.

         12                 I do know that. I know that the

         13  Department of Education issued a report just I think

         14  Thursday indicating class size in the schools, and

         15  parents are saying that it's not realistic in what

         16  has been put out by the Department of Education. So,

         17  we're asking in that example parents to verify, one,

         18  the facts that are given to them by the Department

         19  of Education; and to respond to us and respond to

         20  the organization Class Size Matters, in order to get

         21  the real impact.

         22                 So, I'm just curious as to whether or

         23  not this is going to be really a traffic and public

         24  safety issue, because I understand that there is a

         25  -- is there an emergency vehicle facility that's
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          2  located where you're going to build the hotels?

          3                 MR. SEGAL: Yes, there is one on 43rd

          4  Street to the west of our property.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: To the west.

          6                 MR. SEGAL: To the west. Just to

          7  respond to what you said, Councilman Jackson, I

          8  understand your concern about the real world and the

          9  technical manual, but until and unless the technical

         10  manual is amended, we're still compelled to follow

         11  its guidelines, and if in fact you or others thing

         12  that it should be amended, and once you do so, then

         13  we will fill out the environmental reports

         14  differently. But until that occurs, if we don't fill

         15  it out the way the technical manual requires us to

         16  do so, then we've done something wrong.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I see.

         18                 MS. LEVIN: Excuse me, Mr. Councilman.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Yes.

         20                 MS. LEVIN: At the community board's

         21  request, we spoke with Captain Morris who heads up

         22  Rescue 1. It's an elite unit of the Fire Department

         23  that rescues fire workers and firefighters. He did

         24  not have a concern about the hotels, his concern is

         25  he would like the direction traffic changed on the
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          2  block, that's obviously out of our purview, but as

          3  far as the hotels were concerned he was not

          4  concerned about them being located there.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Well, I'm

          6  sure he's not concerned about the hotel but

          7  concerned about the traffic, because I guess Rescue

          8  1 coming in and out of that area is not really the

          9  hotel but the density of traffic.

         10                 MS. LEVIN: But he understood what

         11  having the hotels meant in terms of traffic, as far

         12  as I could understand in speaking with him.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Now, on the

         14  43rd and 42nd?

         15                 MR. SEGAL: 44th.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: 44th. 43rd

         17  and 44th.

         18                 MR. SEGAL: Yes, sir.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Can you put

         20  back the drawing, the color drawing of the hotel, if

         21  you don't mind?

         22                 Now, one of you had indicated that

         23  there's going to be a curb cut for truck deliveries,

         24  is that going to be on 43rd or 44th Street? And what

         25  is the impact going to be as far as, you're saying
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          2  that's going to be for trucks, they're going to in

          3  essence come in and deliver there; is that correct?

          4                 MR. SEGAL: Yes, the curb cuts on 43rd

          5  Street, as Gene is showing you --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: What about

          7  cars? What about taxis and people coming up in cars,

          8  on the 43rd Street entrance and the 44th Street

          9  entrance? Where are they going to pull over at?

         10                 MR. KAUFMAN: There's a curb cut on

         11  43rd Street as shown here in the drawing.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Which

         13  drawing? Can you point it out to me, please?

         14                 MR. KAUFMAN: This is a curb cut on

         15  43rd Street. This is 43rd Street here on your left

         16  and 44th Street on your right.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Can you point

         18  to me where the street is? Because it's kind of

         19  small, you know. This is the street, I'm sorry.

         20                 MR. KAUFMAN: This is 43rd Street over

         21  here, and this is the curb cut that takes you to a

         22  central yard.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: So, in

         24  essence, someone driving on 43rd Street, 43rd Street

         25  goes where, east, or goes west currently?
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          2                 MR. KAUFMAN: It's a two-way street

          3  because I believe with the situation I believe with

          4  Rescue 1.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay. And,

          6  so, people coming in will be able to come in off the

          7  curb and pull in and will not interfere with

          8  traffic; is that what you're telling me?

          9                 MR. KAUFMAN: That's correct.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay.

         11                 And that will be the same thing on

         12  44th Street, but the 44th Street location will be

         13  for trucks?

         14                 MR. KAUFMAN: There's only one curb

         15  cut. There was a request that there be no curb cut

         16  on 44th Street. So, to get to the 44th Street hotel,

         17  frontloading in the rear, you would need to enter

         18  into the curb cut on 43rd Street.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I see. But

         20  there's going to be an entrance on 44th Street also;

         21  is that correct?

         22                 MR. KAUFMAN: The main entrance to the

         23  hotel on foot, on 44th Street. However, you can also

         24  enter the hotel from the rear, either on foot or by

         25  car.
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          2                 MS. LEVIN: There is no curb cut on

          3  44th Street. Even though the community board

          4  requested that we not have parking, they requested

          5  that we keep the curb cut so that delivery trucks

          6  can pull into the rear of the hotel and not be

          7  making deliveries from the street.

          8                 MR. KAUFMAN: And that's on 44th

          9  Street?

         10                 MS. LEVIN: On 43rd Street. There is

         11  only a curb cut on 43rd Street, which will service

         12  both hotels, because in the rear yard between the

         13  two hotels will be the area for both the cars and

         14  the trucks.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I'm sorry,

         16  say that again, please.

         17                 MS. LEVIN: In the rear yard between

         18  the two hotels will be a parking area for the 12

         19  parking spaces and for delivery trucks to stop and

         20  make their deliveries or pick-ups.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I see.

         22                 MS. LEVIN: Which will get them off of

         23  43rd Street so they're not blocking traffic.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay. That's

         25  it for now, sir.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: We've also been

          3  joined by Council Members Larry Seabrook and Eric

          4  Gioia.

          5                 Council Member Sears, I believe you

          6  had a question?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you, Mr.

          8  Chair. Good morning. My question is, aside from the

          9  traffic, that my colleague has brought up, what are

         10  some of the labor issues that you hope will be

         11  resolved by the time this Council votes on this?

         12                 MR. WALLACE: There have been two sets

         13  of issues. One, about Building Trades and

         14  Construction. There is an ongoing and I think active

         15  and near-concluded dialogue with the Building

         16  Trades. When it comes to hotel workers, we're

         17  talking about a hotel that doesn't have a shovel in

         18  the ground, so you don't have employees yet and you

         19  won't have them for two years. So, I think there the

         20  question is, and obviously, as I hope everyone here

         21  knows, the right to organize is the right of the

         22  workers. It's not the right of the employer to have

         23  organized workers, and frankly, it's not even the

         24  right of one trade union or another. I've been a

         25  member of two trade unions, and I'm very
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          2  appreciative of the fact that workers get to choose

          3  their representation. Obviously in the world of

          4  hotels in New York there is a preeminent and very

          5  highly regarded trade union, so one would anticipate

          6  that that union, you know, would want to organize

          7  those workers. We have reached out and had some

          8  dialogue. We have not moved that to the point where

          9  I think it's fair to say the hotel workers union

         10  leadership is satisfied that we've done what we

         11  should do, in terms of trying to reach an

         12  understanding.

         13                 I want to be very careful here on two

         14  counts. I am not a labor lawyer. My experience with

         15  labor law is having been a trade union member.

         16  Having said that, there are dos and don'ts. It's

         17  really a federal law question, and, you know,

         18  federal law preempts actually the State and the City

         19  in many of these areas.

         20                 So, as I understand it, just as an

         21  employer can't in any way interfere with an

         22  employee's right to organize, nor can an employer

         23  favor one or another organization, and you can see

         24  why, because an employer might want a union shop

         25  that's under their control.
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          2                 So, we're trying to navigate

          3  carefully, deliberatively, timely, talk about timely

          4  in a minute, a progress is what I would call it, so

          5  there is a better understanding between the

          6  developer of the hotels who will own those hotels,

          7  may not manage those hotels, they're not completed

          8  yet, and union leadership in town, including,

          9  obviously, the Hotel Workers Union and Peter Ward. I

         10  hope that you all are satisfied on two counts: One,

         11  that great progress has and is being made on labor

         12  management relations; two, that those are important

         13  issues, very important issues, but they are not

         14  legally germane to the issue before this body, and

         15  that if we, in good faith, and I say this for our

         16  part, and I give you an assurance that we will act

         17  in good faith and that we will have appropriate

         18  dialogue and I think there can be an appropriate

         19  resolution. But that if we do that, and if the union

         20  will do that, as I'm sure they will, that if you're

         21  comfortable that that's happening outside this room,

         22  then what happens inside this room will really be on

         23  the agenda that the law specifies.

         24                 You know, I think I'm sitting in this

         25  seat because I'm supposed to understand the
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          2  Council's dilemma, our client's dilemma, the union's

          3  issues, broader real estate industry's issues,

          4  trying to find a common ground that can work.

          5                 Candidly, when we know that the vote

          6  would not be taken today, it seemed there was more

          7  breathing room, was more time and more opportunity

          8  to kind of do it right, and you're going to probably

          9  hear some things that aren't so nice about the

         10  developer or some of the subcontractors on the

         11  Building Trades side. We have already expressed the

         12  willingness to make a commitment that subcontractor

         13  will not be involved. And when I say "that

         14  subcontractor," I don't just mean that company, and

         15  that is a subcontractor, not even a contractor, but

         16  the principals of that company, okay?

         17                 Now, having done that, again, I don't

         18  want to put my client in legal jeopardy of

         19  interfering with somebody else's contract right, so

         20  we're doing it carefully.

         21                 On the overall Building Trades in

         22  going forward I think will be fine there with

         23  respect to this hotel. And then I think with respect

         24  to hotel unionization on an ongoing basis for the

         25  employees of the hotel, there were more at the
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          2  beginning stages, but there has been some pretty

          3  candid exchange and some pretty good effort, and I

          4  think, you know, give us a chance and we'll get it

          5  done.

          6                 The mood could get soured by negative

          7  things people say after me and we'll deal with that.

          8  We'll try to, you know, we're talking to each other.

          9  Politely, but we haven't agreed yet. I hope that

         10  answers your question.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: It does. And it

         12  may not be the concern of this body at the moment,

         13  but the reason I asked that question is because

         14  there are two hotels, there are hotels by the

         15  airports, and they had labor issues, and they voted

         16  to have the union in. Well, subsequently they have

         17  not done that. The hotels have gone into bankruptcy,

         18  there are people who have lost their jobs, so as a

         19  result what is anticipated in labor relationships

         20  may not be or purview in terms of labor law, but it

         21  ultimately comes back to us and that's why I asked

         22  that question, because it affects the communities

         23  that we serve. So, your answer, I understand it.

         24                 MR. WALLACE: Well, I don't want to be

         25  too technical.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: That's all

          3  right.

          4                 MR. WALLACE: On the broad question

          5  that you raised, let me be blunt: there has been a

          6  conscientiousness raising effort and it has

          7  succeeded. We have already agreed to do things in a

          8  different way in response to that consciousness

          9  raising, and we are prepared to go further.

         10                 It is a delicate balance when you are

         11  here on some sort of specific narrow findings, you

         12  know, when I was a member we had a Board of Estimate

         13  down the hall and they did this stuff. They knew

         14  when they were sitting in a quasi-judicial way and

         15  they knew when they were not.

         16                 The Council is a legislative body and

         17  I fully respect that all issues are fair game to

         18  discuss. What my hope is, is that you hear me say

         19  it, we will address those issues, we will be, I

         20  think to your satisfaction, open, fair and the

         21  commitments that are made will be kept, and we're

         22  very clear about that. If we make a commitment, we

         23  keep it.

         24                 Having said that, we think it's two

         25  different issues. There's a little bit of that, who
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          2  sits at what table when, we'll get there.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: All right.

          4  Thank you.

          5                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Ed, I want to

          7  compliment you on your answer to Council Member

          8  Sears, because I think you've described the

          9  situation very accurately.

         10                 And just for the record, obviously

         11  the Council is always very concerned about labor

         12  issues, however, what we will actually be reviewing

         13  are the Land Use issues in this application. I think

         14  everybody has to understand the difference.

         15                 Any other questions from my

         16  colleagues?

         17                 Council Member Felder.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Thank you. I

         19  don't want to belabor it, but that issue with the

         20  traffic somebody mentioned, I think Ms. Levin

         21  mentioned, that sort of brought up Rescue 1. It's my

         22  understanding that they want all traffic going

         23  westbound; is that true, or eastbound, I'm sorry.

         24                 MS. LEVIN: It's my understanding, the

         25  traffic originally was all westbound, and because of
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          2  Rescue 1, the traffic now goes two ways. They would

          3  like the traffic to go only eastbound, and they are

          4  now are talking to the community board. It's out of

          5  our purview obviously, that would be up to DOT and

          6  the Borough President's Office, and the community

          7  board.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I think you

          9  said that they have no problem. You said something

         10  like that.

         11                 MS. LEVIN: It was my understanding in

         12  talking to Captain Morris that he understood the two

         13  hotels, that we were asking for 12 parking spaces

         14  and that he was not concerned about that, where his

         15  concern was the direction of the traffic.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I would find

         17  it hard to believe that he wouldn't, if he wants all

         18  the traffic going eastbound, that he's not going to

         19  have, that he doesn't have any problem with the

         20  hotels, that doesn't mean per se that the problem is

         21  the hotels, but that's certainly going to increase

         22  the problem he has. Whatever problem that exists is

         23  going to be compounded, whether it's the level of

         24  the manual or not, it's certainly going to become

         25  compounded. So, I would just say for the record, I

                                                            34

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  don't think it's fair for you to say that he doesn't

          3  have a problem with the hotels. It may not be the

          4  problem was caused by the hotels, that I would say

          5  may be accurate, but the hotels, in my mind

          6  certainly will compound the problem, you know, if it

          7  exists today, and I still think that even based on

          8  the answers that were provided, that sometimes you

          9  do a project despite the negative impact it has on

         10  different things. To me, logically, traffic is going

         11  to be impacted negatively no matter what you do,

         12  unless you make a cut inside the sidewalk, like some

         13  of the fancy hotels, and of course that takes away

         14  from your space, it takes away from profit, which is

         15  not something that's done. But I don't see

         16  logically, I'm not talking about technically or

         17  otherwise, that's not my expertise, but I can't

         18  imagine that the traffic will not impact the

         19  neighborhood negatively.

         20                 Having said that, that doesn't mean

         21  that you shouldn't do the project. You know, that's

         22  one element, it's one of the ingredients. But I

         23  think that for the record, I don't think that it's

         24  fair to quote him, to say that he has no problem.

         25                 You know, he may have said my bigger,
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          2  my real problem is that the whole thing should be

          3  eastbound, but if you don't think otherwise, I would

          4  be happy, if it's okay with the chair, to get

          5  something in writing from him saying he has no

          6  problem with it, and I doubt very much you're going

          7  to get that. That's why I asked if you could get it

          8  in writing. Thank you.

          9                 MR. SEGAL: Councilman Felder, with

         10  respect to one thing you said about curb cuts, in

         11  order to have a sort of a waiting area in front of

         12  the hotel, we'd be happy to do that. Of course, we

         13  have to set back, and we're set back 15 feet from

         14  the street line because of leaving an area for the

         15  DOT to go underneath the ground and maintain the

         16  bridge. We agreed with the community board that we

         17  wouldn't do that, but instead we would have a nice

         18  plaza, but we'd be happy to do that.  It would be

         19  better for us. We've just avoided doing that to

         20  instead put a plaza that was more consistent with

         21  the residential character of the area, which is what

         22  they suggested. But I realized you just raised one

         23  possibility, but if after deliberation and a hearing

         24  from the community board, the community board and

         25  you felt that it made sense to do that, we'd be
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          2  happy to do that.

          3                 I realize you weren't suggesting it,

          4  but the community board will be here in a minute --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: No, I

          6  appreciate your mentioning that. But as I said

          7  earlier, I think that there are a lot of ingredients

          8  that go into the project. I certainly am not

          9  intimately familiar with the area, I know it

         10  somewhat, and the people in the community will know

         11  what's best. But let the record show that the

         12  project, I think that it's fair to say, would be

         13  fairer to say when you come to what you said the

         14  second time, which is that the traffic will impact

         15  the neighborhood in a negative way, then despite

         16  that sometimes you do a project, that's all.

         17                 MR. SEGAL: Excuse me. I didn't say

         18  the traffic would impact, I don't believe I said

         19  that the project would impact in a negative way, I

         20  just agreed with Councilman Jackson that certainly

         21  there would be cabs that drop people off, and that

         22  everybody wasn't going to be coming by mass transit.

         23  I certainly didn't say that that would impact the

         24  area in a negative way. I wanted to clarify I wasn't

         25  suggesting that everybody with a suitcase was taking
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          2  the subway.

          3                 The CEQR manual talks about what's

          4  negative in an environmental sense, and that we

          5  weren't tripping any such threshold. And I do think

          6  when you're getting into an area which says when you

          7  have a development that from a use and bulk point of

          8  view (sic) is as-of-right, and it adds traffic below

          9  a threshold, if you start to say that that's a

         10  concern and it could negatively affect an area and

         11  you're getting to one of the underpinnings of our

         12  zoning resolution, which is there are projects that

         13  are as-of-right, this is not totally as-of-right,

         14  obviously we're here for a platform, but the main

         15  questions asked by the findings under this special

         16  permit have to do with impacting the railroad or

         17  causing a serious traffic problem, not a problem

         18  that would be caused by any as-of-right project, but

         19  a problem that would kick some kind of threshold and

         20  cause a significant worsening of the traffic in the

         21  area.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: As a courtesy

         23  to the Chair, I won't prolong the agony, but I don't

         24  know what you're talking about.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: If there are no

                                                            38

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  other questions from my colleagues, I thank the

          3  panel, the applicant, and we will now move to the

          4  public hearing of this item.

          5                 The first person I will call up will

          6  be Anthony Borelli, who is speaking in favor of the

          7  project, from the Manhattan Borough President's

          8  Office.

          9                 MR. BORELLI: Good morning. My name is

         10  Anthony Borelli. I represent Manhattan Borough

         11  President Scott M. Stringer. Thank you, Chair

         12  Avella, and other members of the Subcommittee and

         13  the Council for holding this hearing, and for

         14  allowing me to speak on this special permit

         15  application related to the two hotels proposed to be

         16  built over the rail cut between 43rd and 44th in

         17  Community District 4, Manhattan.

         18                 In addition to my testimony, for the

         19  record I've submitted the Borough President's

         20  official ULURP submission to the City Planning

         21  Commission, which outlines in detail his

         22  recommendation.

         23                 In brief, the proposed use in scale,

         24  the project conforms with the zoning area. The

         25  applicant has taken steps to address a number of
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          2  community concerns and assuming all commitments are

          3  fulfilled, has satisfied the required findings for

          4  the special permit.

          5                 Specifically the applicant has agreed

          6  to modify the design of the hotel, both hotels, to

          7  preserve and protect the scale of the neighborhood.

          8  The applicant has agreed to minimize the number of

          9  parking spaces, and has agreed to operate each

         10  facility in a manner that is sensitive to the

         11  safety, environmental and aesthetic concerns of the

         12  community.

         13                 Toward this end, I thank the

         14  applicant's representatives for working in such a

         15  collaborative manner to resolve these community

         16  issues and look forward to continued work to ensure

         17  the commitments are in fact fulfilled.

         18                 In addition to the specific Land Use

         19  considerations relevant to this application, it's

         20  important to remember why we support economic

         21  development in general.

         22                 The Borough President understands the

         23  importance of supporting appropriate development,

         24  because development can provide much needed economic

         25  opportunities for New Yorkers.
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          2                 That's why construction and permanent

          3  job opportunities at this and all development

          4  projects should provide good jobs that pay well and

          5  have decent benefits. It's why work sites also

          6  should be as safe as possible with workers receiving

          7  sufficient training, both for their safety and the

          8  safety of the community.

          9                 The Borough President has made these

         10  issues one of his top priorities. He has convened a

         11  community labor task force for responsible

         12  contracting that has brought together workers and

         13  community leaders together to forge common ground on

         14  contracting standards for projects seeking public

         15  approvals.

         16                 We will be working together in the

         17  years to come to ensure that as many projects as

         18  possible in this borough reflect the priorities of

         19  the communities in which they are located and the

         20  working people who build and work in them.

         21                 Thank you very much.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you. Seeing

         23  no questions from Committee members, thank you.

         24                 I will now call up, we have three

         25  people to speak in opposition, but I'll call up
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          2  Manhattan Community Board 4 first.

          3                 MS. LEVIN: Thank you, Chair Avella.

          4  My name is Anna Levin. I'm Co-Chair of Community

          5  Board 4's Clinton Hell's Kitchen Land Use Committee,

          6  and I'm pleased to be able to speak today.

          7                 Our letter is a matter of record, and

          8  I won't go into it in total detail, but I do want to

          9  note that this application provoked an unusual

         10  amount of protest in the community.

         11                 The neighborhood was flyered by

         12  people who didn't want to see hotels here at all. We

         13  had several very raucous committee meetings. In lay

         14  terms, people in the neighborhood felt that hotels

         15  are inappropriate at this location, and that the

         16  proposed height and commercial design of the

         17  buildings are wrong for the neighborhood.

         18                 The M zoning at this location is a

         19  historical anomaly, and as the area is developing,

         20  residential uses predominate there now and are going

         21  to dominate future development.

         22                 Immediately across 44th Street to the

         23  north we are soon to see 600 affordable housing

         24  units plus additional market rate units on what used

         25  to be the studio City site. This was one of the
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          2  commitments agreed between the community, the local

          3  Council member, now the Speaker, and the Mayor's

          4  Office as part of the Hudson Yards zoning.

          5                 So, it's a residential area where

          6  transient uses like hotels is not what we wanted to

          7  see.

          8                 However, we understood that this is a

          9  hotel developer. He's not a residential developer,

         10  that's his business, that's what the zoning permits,

         11  so rather than try to stop a project that we felt we

         12  couldn't stop, we thought it would be much more

         13  productive to get to work with the developer, and

         14  try to make this fit into the neighborhood as well

         15  as possible.

         16                 As you heard from the applicant's

         17  advisors, indeed the community board does and

         18  continues to recommend a no vote, because despite

         19  terrific progress in addressing our concerns, the

         20  parking issue remains unaddressed, or unsolved at

         21  least to our satisfaction.

         22                 I'm pleased that there's been such

         23  discussion this morning about traffic and parking,

         24  because that indicates that you really understand

         25  the nature of this neighborhood. This neighborhood
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          2  is often choked with traffic, primarily as a

          3  function of people trying to get to and from Lincoln

          4  Tunnel. At 10th Avenue, both the Tenth Avenue and

          5  11th Avenue in the 40s and down south at 42nd

          6  Street, we often have gridlock conditions because of

          7  the tunnel.

          8                 We, therefore, want to take all steps

          9  to encourage people to leave their cars at home, and

         10  the reason we continue to oppose any parking here is

         11  we don't want the hotels to be able to advertise

         12  people can come to the hotels in their cars. We

         13  think it's much better that they use mass transit,

         14  that they walk, although that's probably not going

         15  to happen, or that they take taxis or some other

         16  form of transportation that is already available. We

         17  don't want people coming in their own cars.

         18                 The Rescue 1 traffic concerns are

         19  real, and Rescue 1 has been working for years to try

         20  and get 43rd Street turned the another direction.

         21  That is a legitimate solution to their problems,

         22  however, 43rd Street right now is westbound, and you

         23  get a lot of traffic coming out of Midtown down 43rd

         24  Street trying to get to the tunnel, if they headed

         25  nose-to-nose with eastbound traffic on 43rd, we
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          2  would have a problem there, but that's a

          3  conversation that's going on with the Transportation

          4  Committee of Community Board 4.

          5                 As noted, we did recommend denial,

          6  unless a number of conditions were met. They had to

          7  do with building scale and design issues, the

          8  parking we've discussed, the requirement that the

          9  street trees be planted, that the applicant use

         10  sustainable or green building practices in their

         11  construction, that they address concerns not only of

         12  Rescue 1, but also of PS 51, which is across the

         13  street, actually it's on 45th Street, but there are

         14  a lot of school children in the area.

         15                 We have security and tour bus

         16  concerns. This is an area that used to be famous for

         17  prostitution and other unpleasant evening

         18  activities, and we want to be sure that these hotels

         19  do not encourage resurgence of activity. These are

         20  not the kind of hotel developers or operators that

         21  cater to that clientele, and so we're confident

         22  we're not going to have that problem.

         23                 Nonetheless, it's important to note

         24  that it is an area of concern and that security has

         25  to be taken seriously.
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          2                 We don't want these hotels to be used

          3  for tour bus groups, because buses are even worse on

          4  our streets than cars, but the applicant has assured

          5  us that these hotels won't book tour groups, and

          6  they're also not big enough to book tour groups, so

          7  as a practical matter, that won't happen.

          8                 And we also want to be sure that care

          9  is taken to minimize the impact on the surrounding

         10  neighborhood, both during construction and as a

         11  result of hotel operation.

         12                 We have commitments from the

         13  applicant that all of these concerns except for

         14  parking will be taken care of, and we look to the

         15  Council to ensure that the agreements that the

         16  applicants have made are properly reflected in the

         17  permit, that is to the extent they relate to hotel

         18  operations, which are not going to be the

         19  applicant's concern, they're going to be franchised

         20  out to hotel operators, those commitments must be

         21  reflected in the contracts between the building

         22  owners, and the operators.

         23                 That said, so, in conclusion, I have

         24  to acknowledge that we are still in opposition

         25  because we still think there shouldn't be any guest
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          2  parking. And it seems to us that if the applicant

          3  was able to reduce the guest parking from 24 to 12

          4  as an operational matter they ought to be able to

          5  eliminate it all together, because 12 parking spaces

          6  doesn't seem to be very significant from a

          7  commercial standpoint.

          8                 That said, I do want to acknowledge

          9  that this application, through its advisors, that

         10  this applicant, through its advisors, engaged in the

         11  collaborative process with the community that was

         12  unusually thoughtful and considerate of the

         13  community's concerns. They came to our committee

         14  both before, well before certification, and then

         15  after certification, as part of a normal process.

         16  This practice, this whole process that we went

         17  through really should be a model for the ULURP

         18  process.

         19                 You know, as a result of this, the

         20  folks in our community who wanted us to just say no

         21  didn't show up and the final moment, they've been

         22  silent. And I believe the project was significantly

         23  improved with the design commitments and the shift

         24  of the density from 44 to 43rd. All of these changes

         25  meant that this applicant did take us seriously and
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          2  was working very concertedly to address community

          3  concerns.

          4                 You know, as I learned long ago, you

          5  can't always get what you want, but through engaged

          6  consultation, you can make the best of a bad

          7  situation. Thank you.

          8                 Oh, could I just address Council

          9  Member Felder's suggestion about further setting the

         10  buildings back?

         11                 This is an area where we vehemently

         12  resist. These hotels get built at a 15-foot setback

         13  so that they can avoid the additional setback that

         14  would be required under regular zoning. This leads

         15  to a very jagged street wall, that leads to sort of

         16  nooks and crannies where street life is interrupted

         17  and occasionally security issues arise. So, you

         18  know, our Land Use world, we work very hard to

         19  maintain a consistent street wall, and indeed it's

         20  one of our concerns about these hotels, which are

         21  popping up all over the neighborhood, that we do

         22  always have these 15-foot setbacks. Yes, they help

         23  for the traffic, but they lead to other sort of

         24  neighborhood design issues that we like to avoid.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any questions?
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          2                 Thank you. Oh, Council Member Katz.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I guess I'm a

          4  little, just can you clarify for me the Board's

          5  position on the running of the hotel and the

          6  agreements about how it is to be done in the future,

          7  and what type of agreements you wanted in the ULURP

          8  process?

          9                 You mentioned something in your

         10  testimony, and I apologize, I'm not exactly sure of

         11  the wording and I don't have a copy of it. But it

         12  was really about most of the running of the hotel

         13  and what would be there, as opposed to the Land Use

         14  issue, and just as Chair of the overall Committee,

         15  just concerned me as to the expectation the

         16  Community Board may have in the ULURP process.

         17                 MS. LEVIN: No, we certainly

         18  understand the boundaries between the technical Land

         19  Use function and other concerns that get raised both

         20  at our Committee and by others in the process. But

         21  we do have a commitment from the applicant to be

         22  sensitive to the impacts of construction and

         23  operation on the operation of the PS 51, the public

         24  school, and Rescue 1, and the commitment from them

         25  to consult with both of those organizations
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          2  throughout. We have a commitment about street tree

          3  planting, that does fall within zoning and Land Use

          4  and really should be documented. We have a

          5  commitment about maintaining effective security

          6  measures, and that neither hotel will accept tour

          7  bus bookings. Those obviously relate to operations,

          8  not so much Land Use, but it is a problem that we've

          9  had from this applicant as part of our discussion,

         10  and we'd like to find, obviously, a way to make that

         11  as enforceable as possible.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay. That was

         13  really what I was concerned with. Certainly the

         14  member whose district this resides in is the Speaker

         15  and I know that she's working very closely with

         16  everyone regarding these agreements. But I wanted to

         17  make sure that the expectations from the community

         18  board to her and to the committee, wasn't that those

         19  things, as far as the tour buses and all that, can

         20  be part of the ULURP. So, that's all. Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         22                 Before we move on to the next two

         23  speakers, I know some Council members may have to

         24  leave and I'd like to take the vote on the one item

         25  we will be voting on today, and that is Land Use No.
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          2  332, which is the motion to accept the petition,

          3  motion to file.

          4                 So, I'd like to ask Counsel to call

          5  the roll. In effect, Chair recommends approval.

          6  We're accepting the petition and the motion to file

          7  to withdraw. This is the 48 East 12th Street Cafe

          8  Application.

          9                 The applicant sent a letter to me

         10  dated November 15th withdrawing the application.

         11  What we have to do is vote to accept in effect the

         12  application, so it's a motion to file the

         13  withdrawal.

         14                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Chairman

         15  Avella.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Aye.

         17                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         18  Rivera.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Aye.

         20                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         21  Felder.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Aye.

         23                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         24  Katz.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Aye.
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          2                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          3  Sears.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Aye.

          5                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          6  Vann.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Aye.

          8                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: The vote stands

          9  at six in the affirmative, none in the negative, no

         10  abstentions.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: We will obviously

         12  keep the vote open before we continue with the

         13  public hearing.

         14                 Next we have two people also in

         15  opposition. I will call them up both together.

         16  Andres' Puerta from the New York City District

         17  Council of Carpenters, and Tony Simone.

         18                 MR. PUERTA: How are we doing? Good

         19  morning. I represent the New York City District

         20  Council of Carpenters, which is a union of 25,000

         21  brother and sister carpenters, as well as the six

         22  highly-trained and highly-skilled carpenters I have

         23  behind me here to support the union's position on

         24  this project.

         25                 It's not every day you see the
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          2  Carpenters Union opposing a development project, so

          3  I'm sure this will be interesting, but I'm going to

          4  tell you why we're doing it. Although it is, I

          5  agree, work, it's probably outside the scope of this

          6  Committee to speak about labor issues. I agree with

          7  Council Member Sears's point that ultimately the

          8  labor conditions do come back to you as

          9  representatives of the community. So, we became

         10  aware of Sam Chang Developments maybe a year ago.

         11  He's very busy putting up hotels in the Chelsea

         12  area. I can tell you that from experience from being

         13  at those job sites, speaking of those workers, it's

         14  majority undocumented workforce from Western Europe

         15  and Latin America, their working conditions are, as

         16  they have told us and they have testified at

         17  Department of Labor also to other agencies, it's not

         18  unusual for them to work 80 hours a week, not get

         19  paid overtime at all, and sometimes not get paid at

         20  all.

         21                 So, the Carpenters Union has been

         22  very busy organizing these workers, trying to find

         23  them an avenue for social justice to get their money

         24  back that they're owed from the subcontractors on

         25  Sam Chang's Development. So, I can assure you, Sam
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          2  Chang is aware of those conditions.

          3                 So, although it's outside of the

          4  scope of the committee, it was brought up, that's

          5  how the Carpenters Union became involved. I'm going

          6  to say that these job sites are essentially the

          7  sweat shops of construction. I mean that.

          8                 So, on the Land Use aspect of this, I

          9  can assure you that, obviously we support

         10  development, we support responsible development, and

         11  I think that the cornerstone of responsible

         12  development is this idea of a highly trained

         13  workforce, trained in safety, a workforce that is

         14  encouraged to take safety seriously, that

         15  understands OSHA, OSHA requirements, and that if

         16  they see trouble on the job site, have the courage

         17  and have the power to bring up an unsafe working

         18  condition. I can assure you that on union job sites,

         19  this is essentially the norm where union workers are

         20  not only highly educated on safety but highly

         21  trained, and I think that we echo the community's

         22  concerns on, you know, it's a working class

         23  neighborhood, and that's very important to

         24  understand, a somewhat complicated project, and so

         25  there are potential nightmares in the neighborhood
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          2  if the construction goes badly. And, so, of course,

          3  one of the ways, there is never any guarantees, one

          4  of the ways you can kind of hedge your bets here is

          5  to have a highly trained and highly skilled

          6  workforce trained in safety.

          7                 So, I'll be two more seconds, on the

          8  labor law part, I know that the developer's

          9  representative said that, you know, it's sort of a

         10  federal law. We agree, but from my experience I can

         11  say that there is nothing in federal or State labor

         12  law preventing the developer from sort of

         13  guaranteeing that, you know, area standards will be

         14  protected, that workers will be protected, that the

         15  workers will be trained by simply signing a union

         16  contract, and you know, agreeing with the union to

         17  build this, these projects with union labor.

         18                 So, and my final point as we stand in

         19  solidarity with the Hotel Workers Union, obviously

         20  this is New York City, the workers should be -- all

         21  workers should be respected.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Before the next

         23  speaker, I just want to say I think I speak for my

         24  colleagues, and we agree with what you're saying.

         25  Obviously, and you mentioned it yourself, there is
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          2  -- we have to review what's generic to the Land Use

          3  issues, however, obviously we are very concerned to

          4  make sure that all construction sites are safe.

          5  We're very supportive of union labor, and we're very

          6  supportive of making sure that the construction

          7  workers are properly trained. So, we hear what

          8  you're saying.

          9                 MR. PUERTA: I appreciate that.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         11                 Next speaker.

         12                 MR. SIMONE: Good morning. Thank you,

         13  members of the Council, for this hearing. My name is

         14  Tony Simone. I live just three blocks north of the

         15  proposed hotels, and I'm here to speak against

         16  approval of the Special Permits application.

         17                 I am a member of Community Board 4,

         18  Manhattan, I do not speak on behalf of the Board but

         19  as a member of the Clinton Land Use Committee. I am

         20  thoroughly familiar with this project. The Clinton

         21  Hell's Kitchen neighborhood, as we all know, is a

         22  rich, diverse and wonderful neighborhood, mostly a

         23  residential neighborhood, even though we're mobbed

         24  with the theater crowd, and the restaurant crowd,

         25  the buildings are four and five stories, plop us
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          2  down anywhere in the City and we would be a

          3  neighborhood like any other. Many of our neighbors

          4  have lived in the neighborhood for generations, and

          5  I as well love living in Hell's Kitchen.

          6                 But we in Hell's Kitchen are also

          7  located in Midtown and face the real estate

          8  pressures, and over 30 years ago, the Department of

          9  City Planning and the City Council recognized that

         10  our neighborhood was an important asset to Manhattan

         11  and that the only way to protect our residential,

         12  low-rise character was to enact strict zoning

         13  controls.

         14                 The Clinton Special District has been

         15  extraordinarily successful in protecting our

         16  neighborhood from over-development and preserving

         17  low-cost rental housing in the area. The Special

         18  District zoning has also preserved a wonderful

         19  neighborhood feel which has made us extremely

         20  popular in recent years. And as the residential

         21  buildings now extend to west across 11th Avenue,

         22  while the West 42nd Street corridor is made up of

         23  tall buildings, the area directly north of there is

         24  almost completely low-rise and in keeping with the

         25  character with the special district. The community
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          2  board has allocated rezoning area west of 10th

          3  Avenue as residential and this would better reflect

          4  and protect the changing neighborhood. It is our

          5  understanding that the Department of City Planning

          6  actually agrees with us, and is working on a

          7  rezoning proposal that would, in all likelihood,

          8  have prevented any hotel development on the site we

          9  are looking at today.

         10                 Even if accepting the development of

         11  this hotel, the proposed hotels are just too big for

         12  the area. As Anna referred to, many of the residents

         13  have come protesting the size of the hotel and the

         14  hotel in general.

         15                 In addition to that, the area is a

         16  traffic nightmare. Anyone knows that by visiting the

         17  area. The hotels will have an enormous impact on the

         18  surrounding area, will create tremendous amount of

         19  traffic, trucks need to deliver food and

         20  pick-up/delivery, laundry, taxis are constantly

         21  blocking traffic to pick up and drop off passengers.

         22  This is to be expected in the appropriate

         23  non-residential neighborhoods for this kind of

         24  activity, but it is a potential nightmare for any

         25  residential neighborhood, and particularly one
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          2  already choked with traffic.

          3                 Clinton is a residential

          4  neighborhood, but we all have the traffic of

          5  Midtown. Actually, it is worse with the Lincoln

          6  Tunnel, theatre traffic, and many truck distribution

          7  centers along the west side make this one of the

          8  most traffic choked areas in the City. And the

          9  traffic can create real public safety issues.

         10                 I know the issue was raised of Rescue

         11  1 fire station located on West 43rd Street, right

         12  down from the proposed development, Rescue 1 trucks

         13  have already had a hard time getting in and out of

         14  the station. There have been times when the trucks

         15  have been completely unable to leave the station.

         16  This will only add to that.

         17                 A couple -- and I know we all went

         18  into about changing the direction of traffic on West

         19  43rd Street, and also these hotels in general are

         20  going to make it worse. First, these hotels should

         21  not have any parking at all. There is no reason they

         22  should be advertising to customers that it's okay to

         23  drive into the area. The hotel also has been willing

         24  to take every step possible to make sure the trucks

         25  delivering to the hotel do not block traffic, and
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          2  developers have included an area for trucks to load

          3  and unload, but it is not big enough.

          4                 The developers have included an area

          5  for trucks to load/unload -- I'm sorry. The

          6  clearance of the driveway needs to be at least 20

          7  feet high for large trucks, the last plans we saw

          8  for this project had a clearance that only went up

          9  to the first floor. Large trucks will have to part

         10  in the street or rather double-park on the street to

         11  make deliveries. Large trucks also need to be able

         12  to turn around at the loading docks. They do not

         13  have to back onto the property or back out of the

         14  driveway.

         15                 If this were not enough room for the

         16  trucks to turn around in the driveway, they should

         17  go straight through West 44th Street so there is no

         18  backing up or turning around issues.

         19                 Traffic tie-ups in the area are a

         20  serious issue and a hotel project must take whatever

         21  steps necessary to make sure they do not make the

         22  situation worse.

         23                 Another final issue, this one is an

         24  important issue, that I am becoming increasingly

         25  concerned about others in the community, these
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          2  hotels are supposed to be built on a platform that

          3  will completely cover the Amtrak railroad tracks

          4  underneath. Those tracks are being covered one block

          5  at a time from Penn Station all the way to the Upper

          6  West Side and beyond. South of the proposed project,

          7  the entire railway cut is now covered straight

          8  through, almost right into Penn Station. These

          9  platforms have created a de facto tunnel, but no one

         10  ever designed the comprehensive tunnel for these

         11  tracks. I know that Amtrak will have time to approve

         12  the final plans for this project, but if you walk

         13  through the train corridor, you will see that there

         14  is absolutely no uniformed standards in how these

         15  platforms are built. Most of the time from the

         16  street you cannot even tell that there is a railroad

         17  underneath. There are no stairways and no

         18  ventilation towers, just concrete slabs up against

         19  each other.

         20                 In the newer platform developments

         21  like this one, the Department of Transportation is

         22  requiring access to the bridges where the streets

         23  run over the tracks so they can be properly

         24  maintained. But what about the trains with

         25  passengers running underneath? Tunnels are designed
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          2  with evacuation passages and forced ventilation for

          3  smoke and toxic fumes. If there is a track or train

          4  fire or accident, God forbid, smoke is cleared from

          5  the area and passengers have a way to get out of the

          6  tunnel.

          7                 Commuter trains as of recent have

          8  been the target of attacks around the world in

          9  recent years. God forbid that should happen here,

         10  but this is a proposed platform and this hotel is

         11  going to make things worse if some calamity happens

         12  on the rails, will it not? And what about the guests

         13  in the hotels? I am sure that Amtrak will insist on

         14  the structural integrity of the platform, but is

         15  Amtrak going to insist that the special precautions

         16  be taken above and beyond the building code which

         17  will protect the hotel guests from toxic fumes

         18  coming up from the tracks? I am sure that if the

         19  hotel were taking special precautions, they would

         20  have told us.

         21                 I do not have the answers to all

         22  these issues, but I do know that I am concerned that

         23  we should have all the answers before any more of

         24  these structures are built.

         25                 I also know this is a bad project and
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          2  the Council should reject it. Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you. If

          4  there is no one else wanting to speak on this item,

          5  I will close the public hearing on it. I will ask

          6  Counsel to call on Bob Jackson for his vote.

          7                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          8  Jackson.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Mr. Chair,

         10  what is the recommended vote on this particular

         11  matter?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Aye.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I vote aye.

         14  Thank you.

         15                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: The vote stands

         16  seven in the affirmative, none in the negative and

         17  no abstentions.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you,

         19  everyone. I will now recess this meeting to the

         20  29th, we will take up the item of the 505-513 West

         21  43rd Street hotel. The Subcommittee will reconvene

         22  at 9:45 on the 29th, followed immediately by the

         23  Land Use Committee at 10:00. This meeting is

         24  recessed.

         25                 (Hearing concluded at 11:00 a.m.)
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